STATE OF INDIANA - ) BEFORE THE IOSHA BOARD OF

} S8: SAFETY REVIEW

COUNTY OF MARION ) CASE DOCKET NO. 14-006
IN THE MATTER OF: )
COMMISSIONER OF LABOR, ;

Complainant, ; FILED

V. ; NOV 2 O 2017

WABASH NATIONAL CORP. ; Indiana Board of
AND ITS SUCCESSORS, ) Safety Review

Respondent, ;

AGREED FENTRY

The parties to the above-captioned proceeding, the Commissioner of the Indiana
Department of Labor (hereinafter “Complainant™) and Wabash National Corp. (hereinafter
“Respondent”), through their duly authorized representatives, desiring to enter into this Agreed
- Entry as final settlement of this matter, do hereby stipulate and agree as follows:

PARTL

1. From December 11, 2013 through June 3, 2014, authorized employees of the Indiana
Department of Labor conducted an inspection at the Respondent’s worksite located at 1000
Sagamore Pkwy., Lafayette, Indiana 47903.

2. OnJune 11, 2014, Complainant issued a Safety Order and Notification of Penalty
(hereinafter “Safety Order”) resulting from Indiana Department of Labor Inspection No. |
3173 97271 and alleging that Respondent had violated the Indiana Occupaﬁonal Safety and
Health Act (IC 22-8-1.1 ef seq.) or the standards or 1ules thereunder. The Safety Order is

attached hereto as Exhibit A and is incorporated herein.
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3. On or about July 3, 2014, Respondent duly and timely peiitioned for review of the
Safety Order.

PART II.

4. The Safety Order consists of Safety Order 1, Items 1, 2, 3,4, 5,6, 7,8, 9, 10, 11, 12,
13, 14,15, 16, 17a, 17b, and 17¢.

5. Safety Order 1, iem 1 alleges a “Serious” violation of 1.C. 22-8-1.1-2, the general
duty clause, for employees working near damaged steel storage racks and assesses a penalty of
Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000).

6. Safety Order 1, Item 2 alleges a “Serious” violation of 1.C. 22-8-1.1-2, the general
duty clause, for employee press operators not having control over the mode selector key and
assesses a penalty of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500).

7. Safety Order 1, Item 3 alleges a “Serious™ violation of 29 CFR 1910.23(c)(1) and
assesses a penalty of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($3,500).

8. Safety Order 1, Item 4 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.95(b)(1) and
assesses a penalty of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000).

9. Safety Order 1, Item 5 alleges a “Serious™ violation of 29 CFR
1910.106(e)(2)(1i)[b][2] and assesses a penalty of Two Thousand Dollars (32,000).

10. Safety Order 1, Item 6 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CEFR 1910.107(b)(2) and
assesses a penalty of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($3,500).

11. Safety Order 1, Item 7 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.107(b)(5)(1) and
assesses a penalty of Three Thousand f‘ive Hundred Dollars ($3,500).

12. Safety Order 1, Item 8 alleges a “Serious” viclation of 29 CFR 1910.107(c)(7) and

assesses a penalty of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($3,500).
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13, Safety Order 1, Item 9 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.107(e)(2) and
assesses a penalty of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollarts ($3,500).

14. Safety Order 1, Item 10 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.107(g)(2) and
assesses a penalty of Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($3,500).

15. Safety. Order 1, rem 11 alleges a “Serious™ violation of 29 CFR 1910.107(g)(3) and
assesses a penalty of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000).

16. Safety Order 1, Item 12 alleges a “Serious™ violation of 29 CFR 1910.107(1){(4)(i) and
assesses a penalty of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000).

17. Safety Order 1, Item 13 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.178(¢)}(2)(iii)
and assesses a penalty of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000). -

18. Safety Order 1, Item 14 alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.212(a)(3)(ii)
and assesses a penalty of Two Thousand Five Bundred Dollars ($2,500).

19, Safety Order 1, Item 15 alleges a “Serious™ violation of 29 CFR 1910.217(e)(1)Xi)
and assesses a penalty of ‘Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500).

20. Safety Order 1, Item 16 alleges a “Serious™ violation of 29 CFR 1910.242(a) and
assesses a penalty of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500).

21. Safety Order 1, Item 17a alleges a “Serious™ violation of 29 CFR
1910.305(g)(1)(iv)(A) and assesses a combined penalty, grouped with ftems 17b&17¢, of Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500).

22. Safety Order 1, Ttem 17b alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR
1910.3065(g)(1)(iv)(B) and assesses no additional penalty above what is assessed in Ttem 17a.

23. Safety Order 1, Ttem 17c alleges a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.305(g)(2)(iii)

and assesses no additional penalty above what is assessed in Item 17a.
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24. The total assessed penalty for Safety Order 1 is Forty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred
Dollars ($48,500).

PART IIL

25. The Safety Order is hereby amended as follows.

26. Safety Order 1, Item 1 is upheld as 2 “Serious™ violation of 1.C. 22—8-1!1—2 as
originally cited, but the penalty is reduced to One Thousand Dollars ($1,000).

27. Safety Order 1, Item 2 is re-classified as a “Non-Serious” violation of I.C. 22-8-1.1—2
as originally cited and the penalty is reduced to One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars
($1,250).

28. Safety Order 1, Ttem 3 is upheld as a “Serious™ violation of 29 CFR 1910.23(c)(1),
but the penalty is reduced to One Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($1,750).

29. Safety Order 1, Item 4 is upheld as a “Serious” violation of 29 CFR 1910.95(b)(1),
but the penalty 1s reduced to Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500).

30. Safety Order 1, Item 5 is deleted in its entirety.

31. Safety Order 1, Item 6 is deleted in ifs entirety.

32. Safety Order 1, Item 7 is re-classified as a “Non-Serious” violation of 2¢ CFR
1910.107(b)(5)(i), but the penalty remains Three Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($3,500).

33. Safety Order 1, Item § is deleted in its entirety.

34. Safety Order 1, Item 9 1s re-classified as a “De Mmimis™ violation of 29 CFR
1910.107(e)(2) and the penalty is reduced to Zero Dollars ($0).

35. Safety Order 1, Item 10 is re-classified as a “De Minimis™ viclation of 29 CFR
1910.107(g)(2) and the penalty is reduced to Zero Dollars ($0). |

36. Safety Order 1, Item 11 is re-classified as a “Non-Serious™ violation of 29 CFR
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1910.107(g)(3) and the penalty is reduced to One Thousand Dollars ($1,000).

37. Safety Order 1, Item 12 is deleted in 1ts entirety.

38. Safety Order 1, Item 13 is deleted in its entirety, but must be properly abated.

39. Safety Order 1, Item 14 is upheld as a “Serious™ violation of 28 CFR
1910.212(a)(3)(ii), but the penalty is reduced to One Thousand Sixty-Two and 50/100 Dollars
(81,062.50).

40. Safety Order 1, Ttem 15 is re-classified as a “De Minimis” violation of 29 CFR
1910.217(e)(1)(1) and the penalty is reduced to Zero Dollars ($0).

41, Safety Order 1, Item 16 is deleted in its entirety.

42. Safety Order 1, Item 17a is upheld as a “Serious™ violation of 29 CFR
1910.305(g)(1)(iv)(A) and retains a penalty of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500). In
addition, the AVD for Item 17b will be added as instance “c” and the AVDs for Item 17¢ will be
added as instances “d” and “e” respectively.

43, Safety Order 1, Item 170 is deleted in its entirety.

44, Safety Order 1, Item 17¢ is deleted i its entirety.

45, The AGREED total penalty for all violations and all subparts thereunder, subject to
this Agreed Entry, is Fourteen Thouéand Five Hundred Sixty-Two and 50/100 Dollars
($14,562.50).

46, Tt is understood and agreed by the Respondent and Complainant that this Agreed
Entry and attachments will constitute a final, enforceable OSHA Safety Order(s) and penalties
for the purposes of the Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Act (“Act”).

47, Respondent confirms Complainant’s rightrto re-inspect its workplaces, in accordance

with the Act, and to verify abatement of the alleged violations.
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48, Respondent hereby withdraws its petition for review previously filed in this matter.

PART IV.

49. Nothing contained in this Agreed Entry shall be construed to affect Complainant’s
interpretation of the Act or any standard or regulation enforced pursuant thereto or the applicable
classification thereof.

50, Neither this Agreed Entry nor Respondent'’s consent to entry of a final Order by the
Indiana Board of Safety Review pursuant to this Agreed Eniry constitutes any admission by
Respondent of violation of the Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Act or regulations or
standards promulgated or adopted there under. Neither this Agreed Entry nor an Order of the
Board of Safety Review entered pursuant to this Agreed Entry is intended to be or shall be
deemed an admission or deemed admissible in any proceeding or litigation, whether civil or
criminal, except for proceedings and matters brought by the United States Government or the
State of Indiana. Respondent is entering into said Agreed Entry without any prejudice to its
rights to raisé any defense or argument in any future or pending cases before this Board of Safety
Review. Respondent retains the right to assert in any subsequent action or proceeding that any
future existing conditions identical or simailar to those alleged in the citation or the complaint do
not violate the Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Act or any standard promulgated or
adopted there under. By éntering into this Agreed Entry, Respondeni does not admit the truth of
any alleged facts, any of the characterizations of Respondent's alleged conduct or any of the
conclusions set forth in the citation issued in this matter.

51. The invalidity or unenforceability of any section, subsection, clause or provision of
this Agreed Entry does not affect the remaining sections, subsections, clauses, or provisions of

this Agreed Eniry.
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52. Respondent, upon full execution of this Agreed Entry, will post this Agreed Entry for
three (3) working days or until abatement 1s completed, whichever period is longer, pursuant to
Board of Safety Review Rules of Procedure, 615 TAC 1-2-18(b)(3)(C).

Nuvtambe

AGREED this 20U "day of Gctober, 2017.

/’
NATIONAL CORP. COMMIS\SI(])NER OF LABOR
( B’y_; (e
— " Julié Alexan der,
Printed: ﬁ\hcl\("t W j el SL e Director of General Industry,
; . o ~TOSHA
Title: DtiV‘d o D‘p Qv?bv’m’k FHS i
Approved as toe Form:
E , 4. y 173 )
Byl o)) _fneqmey By:_ (ovein 1202
Ellen D. Gregory,cy Fo J, Anthony Hardman,
Counsel for Respondent Counsel for Complainant
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*EXHIBTA!

Indiana Department of Labor
Indiana Occupational Safety and Health Administratior
402 West Washington 8t - Room W195.

Indianapolis, IN 46204

Phone: 317-232-2691- FAX: (317)233-8509

W malFFG) 7/9p 0005 G780 oA34 D4b0 &Y Cg—z@

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

To: Inspection Number: 317397271

Wabash National Corporation CSHO ID: V2442,

P.O. Box 6129 Optional Report No.:0011-14

Lafayette, IN 47903 Inspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Tssuance Date: 6/11/2014

Inspection Site:

1000 Sagamore: Patkway South The violation(s) described in this Safety Order and

Lafayette, IN 47903 Notification of Penalty is (are) alleged to have occurred

on or about the day(s) the inspection was made unless
oOtherwise indicated within the description given below:

An inspccﬁon of your place of employment has revealed conditions which we believe do.not comply with
the provisiens.of the Iidiana Oceupational Safety agd Health Act (Iridiana Cade, Chapter 22-8-1.1) or the
stenidatds or rules adopted thereunder.  Accordingly, enclosed please find safety order(s) and
notification(s) of penalty describing such violation(s) with references: to apphcable standards rules, or
provm otis of the Statiie and stating the amount of any pemaltyies).

Informal Conference - Please be advised that it may be possible to informally settfle any
potential dispute without isitiating the more elaborate proceedings brought on by a petition for
review. Prior to filing a petition for review, you may request an informal conference concerning
any of the results of the inspection (safely orders, penalties, abaterent dates, etc.) by contacting the
Indiana Department of Labor/IOSHA, preferably by telephone, in a prompt manner. Please be:
advised that a request for an informal conference cannot extend the fifteen working day period for
filing a petition for review. Informal conferences frequently resolve anv possible disputes, and
therefore vou are urged to take advantace of this opportunity. Because of the limited time period.
and in order te facilitate schéduling, any requests for an informal conference should be made
prompily upon vour receipt of the safety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty.

Right to Contest - You are hereby also notified that you are éntitled to seek administrative review of
the safety order(s), penaliy(ies), or both by filing a written petition for review at the above address
postinarked within fifteen working days of your receipt of the safety order(s) and notification(s} of
penalty. ("Working days" means Mondays through Fridays, bt does not inelude Saturdays, Sundays,
legal holidays under 4 state. statute or days on which the Indiana Department of Labor's 6ffices are closed
during regular business bours). If you do not file such a pefition for review (contest), the safety order(s)
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anid penalty(ies) shall be deemed final orders of the Board of Safety Review and not subject tg review by
any coust or agency: The issuance of a safety order does not constitute a finding that a violation has
occurred unless no petition for review is filed, or if a petition for réview (contest) is filed, it must contain
a staternent of its basis and should reference the above inspection number. Upon reeeipt of your pefition
for review, we will affirm, amend or dismiss the safety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty. If we
affirm, your petition for review will be granted (unless it was not timely) and the dispute will be certified
by the Board of Safety Review for further proceedings. The Board of Safety Review is an mdependent
agency dppointed by the goverror with authority to conduct hearings and to issue decisions concermning
disputed safety order(s) and notification(s) of penalty. 1f we amend the safety order(s) ot notification(s)
of penalty, your petition for review shall be deemed moot. However, you will then be given an
opportunity to file a petition for review concerning the amended safety order(s) and notification(s) of

penalty.

Please be advised that an employee or representative of employees may file a petition for teview to
contest the reasonableness of the time stated In the safety- order{s) for the abatement of any violation,

Posting - Upon receipt’ of any safety otder(s) you are required to post such safety order(s), or a copy
thereof, unedited, at or near each place a alleged violation referred to in the safety order(s) occurred.
However, if your operations are such that it is not practicable to post.the safety order(s) at or near each
place of a]leged violation, such safety order(s) shall be posted, umedited, in a prominent place where it
will be readily observable by all affected employees. For example, if you are engaged in activities which
are physwally dispersed, the safety order(s) may be posted at the location from which the employees
operate to carry out their activities. Yon must take steps to ensure that the safety order is not. altered,
defaced, or covered by other material. Posting shall be until the violation is abated, or for three working
days, whichever is longer.

Penalties - Penalties are due within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of this notification unless
contested. Abatement does not constitute payment of penalties.

Abaterient - The conditions cited in the safety order(s) must be corrected {abated) on or before the date
shown for each itern on the safety order(s) and notification(s} of penalty unless:

(1) You file a petition for review concerping the violation, in which case the full abatement period
shall commence ffom the issuance of a final decision by the Board of Safety Review or the courts which
requires-compliance with the safety order; or

(2) ‘The abatement period is extended by the granting of a petifion for modification of abatement
date.

PMAS - The petition for modification of abatement date is a manner in which you may seek additional
time to correct (abate) a violation without having to file a petition for review concerning the safety order,
or after the expiration of the time period to file such a pefition for review when it becomes apparent that
you need extra fime to abate the vielation. A petition for modification of abatement date shall be in
writing and shall include the following information:

{1} All steps you have taken, and the dates of such actions, in an effort to achieve compliance
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during the prescribed abaterment period.
(2) The specific additional abatement time nécessary in order to achieve compliance.

(3) The reasons such additional time is necessary, Including the unavailability of professional or
technical personnel or of materials and eguipment, or because necessaty consiruction or alteration of
facilities cannot be completed by the original abatement date,

(4) All available interim steps being talen to safeguard employees against the ¢ited hazard during
the abaternent period.

(5) A certification that a copy of the petition has been posted, -and if appropriate, served on fhe
authorized representative of affected employees, and a certification of the date upen which such posting
and service was made.

A petition for modification of abatement date shall be filed with the Indiana Department of Labor/IOSHA
* no later than the close ‘of the next working day following the date on which abatement was originally
required. A lafer-filed petition shall be accompanied by the employer's statement -of exceptional
circumstances explaining the delay. A copy of such petition shall b¢ posted in a conspicuous place where
all affected employees will have notice thereof or near stich location where the violation occurred. The
petition: shall remein posted until the time period for the filing of 4 petition for réview of the
Comnissioner’s granting or denying the petition expires. Whire affected employees are répresented by
an authorized representative, said répresentative shall be served & dopy of such petition.

Neafification of Corrective Action - Correction of the alleged violations which have an abatement
period of thirty (30) days or'less shonld be reported in writing to us promptly uper correction. A "Letter
of Abatemeént” form and an "Abatement Photographs” worksheet are enclosed for your assistance in
‘prowdmg adequate documentation of abatement. Reports of corrections should show specific corrective
action on each alleged violation and the date of such aetion. On alleged violations with abatement
perods of more than thirty (30) days, a written progress report should be submitted, detailing what has
been done, what remains to be done, and the time needed to fully abate each such viclation. When the
alleged violation is fully abated, we should be so advised: Timely correction of an alleged viclation does:
not affect the injtial proposed penalty..

Followup Inspections - Please be-advised thata followup mspection may be made for the purpose of
ascertaining that you have posted the safety erder(s) and corrected the alleged violations. Failure to
correct an alleged violation may result in additional penalties for sach day that the violation has not been
correeted.

Employer Diserimination Unlawful - The law prohibits discrimination by an employer against
#n employee for filing a complairit or for exercising any rights under this Act. Anemployee who believes
that he/she has been disciiminated against may file a complaint no later than 30 days after the
discrimination eceurred with the Indiana Department of Labor/IOSHA at the address shown above.

Notice to 'Empi'l()yeesr - Thelaw gives an employee or his/her representativé the opportunity to ebject
to any abatement date set for a viclation if he/she believes the date to be unreasenable. “The contest must
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be mailed to the Indjana Department of Labor/TOSHA at the address shown :above within fifteen (15)
working days (execluding weekends and State holidays) or receipt by the employer of this safety order and
penalty.

I you wish additional information, you may direct such requests.t us at'the address or telephone number
stated above.
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Indiana Department of Labor

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INF ORMAIL CONFERENCE
An informal conference has been scheduléd with TOSHA to discnss the safety order(s) 'i}SSUed o1

6/11/2014. The conferetice will be held at the TOSHA office located at 402 West Washington Street,

Room W195, Indisnapolis, IN 46204 on at . Employees and/or

representatives of employees have a right to attend an informal conference.
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TIndiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 317397271
Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Pate: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V2442

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety 'Qrder and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash National Corporation -
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Item 001 Type of Violation: Serions

I1C 22-8-1.1 Section 2: The employer did not establish and maintain conditions of work which were.
reasonably safe and healthful for employees, and free from recognized hazards that were causing or
lilkely to cause death or serious physical harm to employees in that employees were exposed to crushing
hazards from potential collapse of damaged industrial steel storage racks:

Warehouse - Employees placed boxes, parts, and produets vp to 1,500 pounds on damaged industrial
steel storage racks on a regularand routine basis. Racks bad damage such as, but not limited to, bent
and dented uprights, borizontal cross members, and diagonal cross members.

AMONG OTHER METHODS, FEASIBLE MEANS OF ABATEMENT MAY INCLUDE: Unlbad.and repalr
damaged storage rack contponents per Section 1.4.9 of ANSI MH16.1:2012 Specifieation for the Design,
Testing and Utilization of Industrial Steel Storage Racks.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 7/15/2014
Proposed Penalty: $2,000.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 317397271
Oceupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V2442

Optional Report No,: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash National Corporation
TInspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkyvay South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Ttem 002 Type of Vialation: Serious

1C 22-8-1.1 Section 2: The employer did not establish-and maintain conditions of work which were
reasonably safe and healthful for employees, anid free from recognized hazards that ‘were causing or
likely to-cause death or serious physical hamm to einployees in that employees wete exposed to potential
amputation hazards due to the means for selecting a mode of operation (selector-switch key) not being
supervised orr hydrauhie:presses:

Metal Fab - Employees operdted hydraulic préss brakes sueh as, but not limited to, Pacific K500-14
(SN 9485) on a regular and routine basis with the mode selector switch key left in the machine.

AMONG OTHER METHODS, FEASIBLE MEANS OF ABATEMENT MAY INCLUDE: The operator ot
. supervisor maintaing coritrol of the mode selector switch key while the press is rmnﬁ'ng_._per Section 6.11.1.0of
ANSI B11.3-2002 Safety Requirements for Powey Press Brakes.

Date By Which Violatien Must Be Abated: 7/15/2014
Proposed Penalty: $2,500.00
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Indiana Departmentof Labor Inspection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V2442

‘Optional Report No.: 0011-14

- Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash Natlonal Corporation. -
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South; Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Item 003 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.23(c)(1): Open-sided floors and/or platforms four feet or more-above adjacent floor or
ground level were not guarded with standatd railings (orequivalent) and toeboards:Note: Toeboards are
only required when peisons can pass, there 1 moving equipment or there is equipment with-which
falling roaterials could create a hazard.

a) Line 2 -~ Up to.and mclpding 18 employees stood on platforms sueh as, but not limited 1o, the Line 2
Pre-finish platform that was 1 0' 5" tall, on a regular and routine basis, without standard railitigs when
waiting for the next trailer to roll down the line. The top rail of the railing provided was only 22" tall.
Employees weéte not provided with fall protection.

b) Line 2 - Upto and including 12 employees stood on platforms su,ch as, but not limited to, the Ling 2 Decal
platform that was 7' 2 1/2" tall, on-a regular and routine basis, without standatd railings when waiting for the
next frailer to roil down the line, Employees were not provided with fall protection.

e} Ling 2 - Up to and including 6 employees stood 6n platforms such s, but not limited to, the Line 2 Nose
fnstaﬂ;platfqrm that was 7' 9 1/2" tall,.on a regular and routire .basi_s_,, without standard railings when installing
the trailer nose. Employees were not provided with fall protection. '

Pate By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 71572014
Proposed Penalty: $3,500.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Tuspection Number: 317397271

Ocgupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 12/11/2015 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V2442

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash National Corporation
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway Sonth, Lafayette, IN 47503

Safety Order 01 Item 004 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.95(b)(L): When eriplayees were subjected to sound exceeding those listed in Table G-16,
feasiblé-administrative or engincering controls were not utilized:

Facility - On'Pe“bma:y"?, 2014, employess manufachiring trailers in production areas such as, but not
limited to, Plant 1 were exposed to noise levels greater than 100 dBA for up to 8 hours daily:

In the producﬁ@n area, an employee was exposed to continuous noise dose levels at 1129.2% of the allowable
8-hour time-weighted average sound level (90 dBA). The equivalent dBA dose level of 1129.2% is
approxlmately 107.54 dBA {105.54 dBA for Type Il instrumentation error). The sampling was performed for
452 miinutes during one shifton February 7, 2014. Zero sxposure was assumed for the unsampled period of
tfimne of 28 minutes,

In the production area, an employee was exposed to ¢onfinuous hioise doge: levels af 621.6% of the allewable
8-hour timesweighted average sound level (90 dBA). The equivalent dBA dose level of 621:6% is
approximately 103.41 dBA (10141 dBA for Type Il instrumentation error). The sampling was performed for
469 minwtes during one shift on February 7,2014, Zero exposure was assumed for the unsampled. penod of
time of 11 minutes..

In the production area, an ¢mployee was exposed to continuous noise dose levels of 1187.5% of the allowable
8-hour time-weighted average sound fevel (90 dBA). The equlvalent dBA dose level of 1187.5% is
approximately 107.89 dBA (105.89 dBA for Type 1 instrutentation error). The sampling was performed for
452 mirutes during one shift on Febmary 7, 2014. Zero exposute was assumed for the unsampled period of
time of 28 minites.

In the producf:mn area, an employee Wwas exposed to confinuous noise-dose levels.of 625.4% of the allowable
8-hour tine-weighted average sound level (90 dBA). The equivalent dBA dose level of 625.4% is
approximately 103.46 dBA (101.46 dBA for Type Il instrumentation exror). The sampling was performed for
466 rninutes during one shift on Febraary 7, 2014, Zero expesure was assumed for the unsampled period-of
tinie of 14 minutes.
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AMONG OTHER METHODS, FEASIBLE MEANS OF ABATEMENT MAY INCLUDE: Add temporary
sound-absorbing materials to trailer walls to reduce noise levels throughout the production area; change
employee work schedules to reduce noise exposure; provide employees with custom-fit ear plugs:

Date By Which Violation Must Be Absited: 7/15/2014
Proposed Penalty: $5,040.00

AR A s LR N T LY. L LRI P Tha mes’ THO 28 OL LYOTTA 7 FTF per 5 F1 AN




Indiana Departnient of Labor Inspection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Tnspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
' Issuance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V4472

Optional Report No.: (011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Couipany Name: Wabash National Corporation
Ingpection Site; 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Item 605 Type of. Violation: Sexrious

29 CFR 1910.106(e)(2)DIb][2]: The quantity of liquid that may be located outside of an inside storage
room or storage-cabinet in a building or in any ene fire area of a ‘building shall not exceed : 120 gallons
-of Category 2, 3, or 4 flamimable liquids In containers:

Paint barn - Category 2; 3, and 4 lammable liquids such.as, but not limited to, approximately 18-gallons
of waste paint, 18-gallons of liquid waste sotvents, 30-galions of aerasol can discharge waste, and
55-galions of acetone as well.a$ various amounts of xylene, isprapyl alcobiol, and denatured aleohol
were stored and dispensed in the same fire area of a building outside of flammable storage cabinets.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 7/15/2014
* Proposed Penalty: $2,000.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspecfion Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspéction Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Tssuanee Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V2447

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash National Corporation
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Item 006 T‘ﬂ"pc of Violation: Serious

1910.107(b)2): The interior surfaces of spray booths shall be smooth and continuous without edges
and otherwise designed to prevent pocketing of residues and facilitate cleaning and washing without
mjury:

a) Coupler spray booths A, B, and C. - Employees sprayed couplers with Category 2 {lammable liquids
such as, but not limited to, ZPG-9035 Orange and ZPG-1017F Low VOC. for up to.eight hours daily
inside a spray booth containing a corrugated metal garage door.

b) Bast Line - Employees sprayed bogies with Category 2 flammable liquids such as, but not Hmited to, Z
Guard 10,000 Black Undercoating for up to eight hours daily inside a spray hooth with three holes ranging
from 1 ¥% inches to 6 inches on the side walls.

¢) Alpha Line - Employees sprayed landing gear and slide rails nsing flammable liguids such as, but not
limited to, ZPG-9035 Orange, ZPG-1017F Low VYOG, and Z Guard 10,000 Black Undercoating for up to eight
hours daily inside a spray booth containing a corrugated metal garage door.

dj Facility - Dry type overspray spray booths such as, but not limited to, the East Line, Dedicated Line,
Coupler Line A, Coupler Lines B&C, Alpha Line, Line 1, and Line 2 spray booths used on a regular-and
routine basis to spray Category 2 flammable liquids such as, but not limited to, ZPG-9035 Orange,
ZPG-1017F Low YOC, and Z Guard 10,000 Black Undercoating onto various parts had a container of xylene
mounted to the inside wall of the spray booth

'Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 71512014
Proposed Penalty: $3,500.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Nuwber: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Adiministration Inspection Date(s):  12/11/2013--6/3/2014
Issnance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V2442

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash National Corporation
Tuspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafaystle, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Ttem 007 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.107(0)5)1); The spraying operatiofns cxcept ejectrostatic spraying operations were not
designed, installed and maintained so that the average air velocity over the open fice of the booth (ot
booth cross section during spraying operations) 1s niot less than 100 linear foet per minute. Electrostatic
spraying operations were not conducted with an air velacity over the open face of the booth of more
than 60 linear feet per miniite depending on the volnme of the finishing material being applied and its
flammability and explosion chatacteristics. Visible gauges or andible alarm or pressure activated
dévices were not installed to indicate or insute that the required air veloeity 1s maintained. Filter rolls
wwere not inspected to insure proper replacement of filter media:

4y Dedicated Line spray booth - On January 14,2014, and at times prior to, the average air velocity over
the open face of spray booths such as, but not limited to, the: Dedicated Line spray beoth with overspray
dry filters or filteriolls was 60, 56 linear feet per minute when measured with a Veloci Check model
8330 (S/N 225-03415) velometer.

b) Coupler A spray booth On Ja:uuary 14 2014 and at times prior to, the averacre air velomty over the open
TOHS was 59.17 linear fcet per minute when measured Wlth a Velocl Check mode] §330 (S/N 225 034] 3)
velometer.

&) Coupler B&C spray boothk - On Jamuary 14, 2014, and at times prior 16, the average air velocity over ‘the

open face of spray booths such as, but not limited to, the Coupler B&C spray booth with overspray dry ﬁlters
or filter rolls was 51.05 linear feet per minute when measired with a Veloei Check model 8330 (S/N
225-03415) velometer.

d) Alpha Line spray bogth - On January 15, 2014, and 4t times prior to, the-average air velocity over the open
face of spray booths such a5, but not limited to, thie Alpha Line spray booth with overspray dry filters or filter
rolls was 37.25 linear feet per minute when measured with a Vieloci Check model 8330-(S/N 225- 0341 5)
velometer.

e) Line 2 spray booth - On Janvary 15, 2014, and at timies prior to, the average ait velocity over the open face
of spray booths such as, but not limited to, the Line 2 spray booth with. overspray dry filters: or filter rolls was
87 33 linear feet pér mimite when theasured with a Veloci Check model 8330 (S/N 225-03415) velometer.

Qatatu Order and Natificatinn of Penalty Pawe 13 nf 26 OSHAM'Z (;RGV 1145




1) Facility - Water gaiges were installed, but not used to ensure the required air velocity was mainfained in dry

type overspray collector spray booths such as, but not limited.to, the Dedicated Line, Road Railer Line,
Coupler Line A, Coupler Line B, Coupler Line C, Alpha Line, Line 1, and Line 2 spray booths.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 7/15/2014
Proposed Penalty: : $3,500.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V244

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notifieation of Penalty

Company Name: ‘Wabash National Corporation
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Item 008 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.107(c)(7): Blectric lamps outside of but within 20 feet of spraying area(s), and not
separated therefrom by partition(s), were not totally enclosed to-prevent the falling of hot particles:

Line 2 spray booth ~Employees used an electric halogen lamp located within 20 feet of the spray booth

on a regular and routine basis to light the inside of trailers.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 71512014
Proposed Penalty: '$3,500.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Tuspection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Adniinistration Tnspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V2442

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash National Corporation
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

e

Safety Order 01 Ttem 049 Type:of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1810, 107(e)(2): The quantity of flammable liguids or kquxds with a flashpoint greater than
199.4 °F (93 °C) kept in the vicinity of spraying operations shall bé the minimum required for
opérations and should ordinarily not excéed a supply for 1 day or one shift. Bulk storage of portable
containers. of flammable liquids or liquids with a flashpoint greater thén 199.4 °F (93 °C) shall be in a
séparate, constructed building detached from other important buildings or cut offin 4 standard manner:

Faeility - Spray booths such as, bt not limited to, the East Line, Dedicated Line, Cotipler Line A,
Coupler Lines B&C, Alpha Line, Line 1, and Line 2 spray booths used on a regular and routine basis to
spray Category 2 flamriiable fiquids such as, but not Heited to, ZPG-9035 Orange, ZPG~1017F Low
VOC, and Z Guard 10,000 Black Undercoating had more than one day’s supply of flamimable liquids
kept next to the spray booth.

Date By Which Viclation Must Be Abated: 7/15/2014
Proposed Penalty: $3,500.00
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Indiana Department of Labor : Tnspection Namber: 31739727)

Oceupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Dates)y:  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
. Issuance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO1D: V2442

Optional Report Ne.: 0011-14

Safety Oxder and Notification of Penalty

" Company Name: Wabash National Corporation

Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore, Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Item 010 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.107(2)(2): All spraying areas were not kept as free from the accumulation of deposits of
combustible residues as practical, with cleaning conducted daily if necessary:

a) East Line - Spray beoths with d:y type overspray-collectors and filter rolls such as, but not limited to,
the East Line spray booth had an accumulation of overspray from combuistible products sach as, but not
Himited to 7 Guard 10,000 Black Undercoating on sutfaces to include the walls, ceiling, and flgors.

b) Dedicated Line - Spray booths with dry type overspray collectars and filter rolls such as, but not limited to,
the Dedicated Line spray booth had an accumulation of overspray from combustible products such as, but not
limitéd to Z. Guard 10,000 Black Undercoating on surfaces to include the walls, ceﬂm_g, ard floors.

¢) Alpha Line - Spray booths with dry type overspray coliectots and filter rolls such as, but not limited to, the
Alpha Line spray booth had an aceumulation of overspray ffoth cotnbustible products such as; but not limited
to ZPG-1017F Law VOU paint, Z Guard 10,000 Black Undercoating; and ZPG-9035 Orange rust proofing on
surfaces to include the walls, ceiling, and floors. '

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: T115/2014
Proposed Penalty: $3,500.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V2442

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash National Corporation
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Ttem 011 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR.1910.107(_‘g)(’3)': Residue scrapings and debris contaminated with residue shall be immediately
removed from the premises and properly disposed of. Approved metal wasté cans shall be provided
wherever rags.or waste are impregnated with finishing material and all such rags or waste dep031ted
therein immediately after use. The contents of waste cans shall be properly disposed of at {east opee
daily of at the end of each shift:

Facility - Up to.and including 55-gallon rrietal drums containing floor serappings, bogth coatinig, rags,
floor paper, and other vatfous materials contarminated with spray finishing residue from Category 2
flammable liquids'such as, but not limited to, ZPG-9035 Orange, ZPG-1017F Low VOC, and 7, Guard
10,000 Black Undercoanng were not removed from the spraying area at least-once daily.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 71152014
Proposed Penalty: $2,000.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety snd Health Administration Inspcutiﬁn Date(s):  12/11/2013 -6/3/2014
Issiiance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO 1D: V2442

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash National Corporatiozt
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Ttem 012 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.107((4)(E): All areas were not kept free of the accurnunlation of powdér coating dust:
Powder coating room - Powder coating dust from produets such as, but not Hmited to, Envirocron

‘Powder accamulated on horizontal surfaces oufside of the spray hooth,

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 7152014
Proposed Penalty: $2,000.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 317397271

Qeexipational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V2442

Optional Reporf No.; 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash Natiorial Corporation _
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Ttem 013 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.178(e)2)(ii1): Only approved power-operated industrial trucks designated as EX were not
used in atmosphieres containing any of the chemtcals referenced in this section in quantities sufficient to
produce explosive or ignitable mixtures, or where such concentrations.of gases or vapors exist
continnously, intermittently, or periodically under normal operating conditions, or may exist frequently
because of repair, maintenancé: operations, leakage, breakdown or faulty operation of equipmeént:

Paint barn - Employees used liquified petrolenm gas forklifts such as, but not limited to, the Toyota
model $FGU30.(SMN 35437) forklift where flamrmable lquids such as, but not limited to: acetone,
xylene, isopropyl alcohol, and denatured alcohol are dispersed fror.55-gallon drums into 5-gallon
safety-cans for distribution on the shop floor.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 7/15/2014
Proposed Penalty: $2,000.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Administration, Inspéction Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Date; 0/11/2014
CSHO ID: V2442

Opfional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: ‘Wabash National Cotporation
Inspéction Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47503

Sa’f’ei‘y Order 01 Ttem 014 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.212(a)(3)i}: Potin’t('s) of operation of machinery were not guarded to prevent employee(s)
from having any part of their body in the danger zone(s) during operating cycle(s):

) Alpha Line~ The antomated Assembly Technology & Test punch press (S/N 19282) did not have a
side safety guard, leaving a 12-inch wide opening and exposing employees to. point of operation hazards
on aregularand routine basis.

b) Plant 1 - Employges bypassed the rear chain guard on the 660-ton Cincinnati Model 21 Séries mechanical
punch press (8/N 19233 on a regular and routine basis to obtain parts.

Date By Which Vialation Must Be Abated: T/15/2614
Proposed Penalty: $2,500.00

Cadatr Pedar and T;Tnﬁﬁm:'ﬁ'}nﬂ--.nP'Dnha-]h:.. Pame 1 af A CABTIALY MR ow 1 ITAN




Indiana Department of Labor Tospection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Tnspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Tssnance Date: 6112614
CSHO ID: V2442

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash Nationa! Corporation
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Ttein 015 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR-1910.217(e)(1)(1): A program of periodic and regalar inspections of miechanical power press(es)
was not established and followed to enstire that all parts, auxiliary €quipment and safeguards were in a.
safe operating condition and adjustment:

‘Metal Fab - Employees operatéd mecharical power presses such as, but not limited to, Danly 110-ton
OBI power press (S/N 11053730265) and Danly 200-ten OBI power press (S/N 20053740365) up to
cight hours daily witheut safety blocks attached to the intetlock devices.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 71512014
Proposed Penalty: $2,500.00
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Indiata Department of Labor Inspection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Tnspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO 1D: V2442

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company ﬂame; ‘Wabash National Corporation
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47503

Safety Order 01 Ytem 016 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.242{2): Hand and portable powered tools.of equipment wete not kept in safe condition:

Alpha Line — Employees used a portable electric band saw such as, but not limited to, Milwaukee Deep
Cnt band saw (/N D51AD1242094B) with unguarded moving parts and in-going nip peints ona
regular and roufine basts to ent rails. The portion of the blads notused during eutting was left
unguarded.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: THS52014
Proposed Penalty: $2,500.00
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Indiana Department of Labor Inspection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Tnspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuance Date: 6/11/2614
CSHO ID: V2442

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash National Corporation
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayetts, IN 47903

The alleged violations belowhave been grouped becauss they involve similat or related hazards that may
increase the potential for ijury or illness.

Sifety Order 01 Item 0172 Type. of Violation: Serious.

29 CFR 1910.305(g)(1)(iv)(A): Flexible cords and/or cables were used as a substitute. tor the fixed
wiring of a structure:

) Plant 1 - Employees used an extension cord instead.of fixed wiring to power an electric eirenlar saw
such as, but not limited to, DeWalt circular saw (asset #5436/8585) on a regular and routine basis in
order to cut wood on trailers. '

b) Plant 1 — A flexible cord was used as fixed wiring by being wired directly into a 120V cutlet receptacle,
looped over a doorway- used by employees to enter and exit the plant on a regular afid roufing basis'and then
fed into an underground PVC conduit to power miscéllanéous ¢lectrical equipmenit.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 711512014
Proposed Penalty: $2,500.00
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Indiana Departmwent of Labor Tospection Number: 317397271

Oécupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
Issuanee Date: 6/11/2014
CSHO 1D: V2442

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Nape: Wabash Nationdl Corporation
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903

Safety Order 01 Fiem 617b Type-of Violation: Serions

29 CFR. 1910.305(g)(1)(iv)(B): Flexible cords and/or cables were run through holes in walls, ceilings, ot -
floors:

Plant 2 — A Frayed 120V flexible cord powering a four-outlet receptacle used daily by ernployees to

charge 2-way radios was run through a hole in a.metal storage cabinet to another 120V outlet receptacle.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 7/15/2014
Proposed Penalty: $0.00

Safety Order and Notificetion of Penalty: Pape28 of 26 OSHA-Z (Rev 1/14)




Indiana Departuient 6f Labor Inspection Number: 317397271

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s):  12/11/2013 - 6/3/2014
" Issuance Date: G6/11/2014
CSHO ID: V24432,

Optional Report No.: 0011-14

Safety Order and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Wabash National Corporation, _
Inspection Site: 1000 Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayeite, IN 47903

Safety Ordex 01 Ttem. 017¢ Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR_1910.305()(2)(1ii): Flexible cords were not conneeted to devices and fittings so that tensiorn
would not be transmitted to joints or terminal screws:

a) Plant 2. — Afrayed 120V flexible cord powering a four-outlet receptacle used daily by employees to

charge 2-way radios was run fhrough a hole In & metal sterage-cabinet to another 120V outlet receptacle,

b) Metal Fab — The 120V flexible cord om the Triad Super Light VI model #TR-24-2F-AU (S/N 0315%08)

light curtain used daily by employees operating the Pacific K500-14 (S/N 9485) hydraulic press brake was not
provided with adequate strain relief.

Date By Which Violation Must Be Abated: 7415/2014
‘Proposed Penalty: $0.00
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Indiana Department of Labor
‘Tndiana Occupational Safety and Health Admitnistration
402 West Washington St~ Roomn W195
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Phone: (317)232-2691 FAX: (317)233-8509.

INVOICE/DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE

Company Name:  Wabash National Corporation
Inspection Site: 1000.Sagamore Parkway South, Lafayette, IN 47903
Yssuance Date: 6/11/2014

Summary of Penalties for Inspection Number: 317397271

Safety Order 1, Serious = $48,508.00
“FOTAL PENALTIES = $48,500.00

Penalties are due within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of this notification unless ¢ontested. Make
your check 6rmeney order payable to: "Indiana DOLAOSHA". Please indicate IQSHA's Inspection
Number (indicated above) on the remittance.

Qr.de_r for less than fuil amount due a_nd wﬂl _ca_sh the ch_ack or me_ne_y order s 1f thesc r_c_sftnctmns
conditions, or endorsements do not exist.

&//// 4

Date.

m:cto : of General Industry

Safete Order and Notification of Penalty Page 1 (Rev /13




